
Council Meeting Regular September 27, 2010 
 

The Regular Council Meeting was called to order by Mayor Ken Hampton at 7:01 p.m. in 
the Haysville Municipal Building, 200 West Grand Avenue. 
 
Roll was taken by Recording Secretary Camille Tullis: Pierce here, Crum here, Bradshaw 
here, Kanaga here, Ewert here, Slocum here, and Conrady here. Councilperson Rob 
Wilkerson was absent.  
 
Invocation was given by Reverend Paul Greene, River of Life Worship Center.   
 
Mayor Ken Hampton led everyone present in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Under Presentation and Approval of Minutes, Mayor Ken Hampton presented for 
approval the Minutes of September 13, 2010.  
 
Motion by Kanaga – Second by Ewert 
Mr. Mayor, I move we approve the minutes of the September 13th meeting.  
Pierce yea, Crum abstain, Bradshaw yea, Kanaga yea, Ewert yea, Slocum yea, and 
Conrady yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
There were no Citizens to be Heard.  
 
There were no Licenses and Bonds.  
 
There were no Ordinances and Resolutions.  
 
Under Notices and Communications, Mayor Ken Hampton asked for Governing Body 
Announcements. 
 
Councilperson Pat Ewert announced Wii Bowling would be held the following day at 
9:00 a.m. at the Senior Center. Ewert also advised Wii Bowling and STEPS class would 
be held on September 30 at 10:00 a.m. Ewert encouraged citizens to play a game of 
Texas Hold’Em at the Senior Center at 9:00 a.m. on October 1.  
 
Councilperson Sandy Bradshaw thanked Public Works and other various City staff 
members that helped complete the remodel, especially the landscaping. Bradshaw 
advised she has received various other positive comments about the remodel from 
individuals outside the Haysville community.  
 
Councilperson Steve Crum announced the library would be hosting their annual Mystery 
Dinner Theater on October 1 through the 3. Crum encouraged citizens to purchase tickets 
at the library.  
 
Mayor Ken Hampton presented the Court Activity Report for August.  
 



Regular Council Meeting 
September 27, 2010 
Page 2 
 
Under Other Business Mayor Ken Hampton presented a Presentation by Management 
Partners, Inc. Re: E-911 Consolidation Report.  
 
Mark Olson, representative for Management Partners Consolidation Team, came forward 
to present the Consolidation Report. Olsen outlined the current organization, resources, 
and responsibilities of the City dispatchers. Olson outlined several different 
recommendations citing specific findings to support each recommendation. 
 
Mayor Ken Hampton clarified there would not be a decision made on the consolidation 
for some time. Mayor Hampton explained the reason for the presentation was to generate 
any questions or comments Council may have.  
 
Councilperson Steve Crum asked if the County would tax the City of Haysville for use of 
their 911 service. Mark Olson advised this would fall under the general taxation for all 
County residents and would not be taxed as a special service. Crum asked if a 911 call 
dialed by a Haysville resident currently came directly to a Haysville dispatcher. Olson 
advised the call would first go to the Public Safety Answering Access Point which was 
Sedgwick County Emergency Communications, and is then sent to a Haysville 
dispatcher. Olsen advised the dispatcher for Sedgwick County does take a note logging 
the call. Crum asked if the consolidation would eliminate the extra step in the 911 call. 
Director of Governmental Services Carol Neugent explained those calls were called 911 
transfer calls. Neugent advised those calls are quickly transferred and not what one would 
think of when talking about transfer calls. Neugent stated the City of Haysville was 
already paying for E-911 services; the City has just opted to provide an additional and 
higher level of service. Crum asked, because the City would no longer have the dispatch 
phone number of 529-5911, if a citizen would still have a number to call for non-
emergencies. Chief of Police Mike McElroy stated that particular issue would need to be 
researched further to determine how the community would handle that situation.  
 
Councilperson Sandy Bradshaw asked if the City would be charged additional fees. Mark 
Olsen explained Sedgwick County had not indicated that the services provided to 
Haysville would be any different than the services they already provide to other cities. 
Olsen further explained those other cities are not charged extra fees. Olsen stated the only 
possible charge would be if someone called the City of Wichita’s S.P.I.D.E.R. system to 
check for warrants, which was an occasional cost depending on the city. Olsen clarified 
there would be no charge for emergency communications specifically. Bradshaw asked if 
Haysville would have to purchase a computer assisted dispatching system like the City of 
Derby to maximize emergency services. Olsen stated there would be no benefit to 
purchase the system if the City would enter into the consolidation agreement.  
 
Mayor Ken Hampton added he had met with Sedgwick County recently and they advised 
they would be able to absorb Haysville’s calls with no additional personnel. Mayor 
Hampton stated the only reason Sedgwick County would have to add personnel would be 
if both Derby and Haysville transferred their dispatch services to the county. 
 



Regular Council Meeting 
September 27, 2010 
Page 3 
 
Councilperson Mike Kanaga asked if the upgrades and improvements in the new Police 
Department would become obsolete if they would enter into a consolidation agreement. 
Chief of Police Mike McElroy stated all of the upgrades and improvements would still 
benefit the department well into the future with either decision they make. Mark Olsen 
added the way the communications window was set up it could potentially act as a front 
reception desk.  
 
Councilperson Keith Pierce asked if there were any other duties staff wanted to add to the 
list of responsibilities for dispatchers on page twenty of the report. Director of 
Governmental Services Carol Neugent advised they only listed the primary and 
secondary functions that dispatchers are responsible for because a complete list would be 
extremely lengthy. Pierce asked if the most significant things were listed. Neugent 
answered yes. Mark Olsen advised the City of Derby listed every duty their dispatchers 
were responsible for and the list comes to about ten or twelve pages printed.        
 
Mayor Ken Hampton presented a Memorandum from Planning/Community Relations 
Coordinator Jeana Morgan Re: Zone Change Request – Lots 6 & 7, Block B, South Field 
Addition.  
 
Planning/Community Relations Coordinator Jeana Morgan advised the Haysville 
Planning Commission held a public hearing on September 23 for a Zone Change Request 
to move from Light Commercial to Heavy Commercial on Lots 6 & 7, Block B, South 
Field Addition, commonly know as 7519 and 7539 South Broadway. Morgan advised the 
VFW was requesting the change. Morgan explained the change would allow a private 
club to be operated on the property. Morgan stated the Haysville Planning Commission 
recommended approval.  
 
Councilperson Steve Crum asked why they needed the zone change to become a private 
club. Planning/Community Relations Coordinator Jeana Morgan explained they were 
currently a private club but the zone change would be for a new facility. Morgan stated 
they were zoned as Heavy Commercial at their current location. Morgan advised the new 
property would be directly across the street from their current location. Crum asked if 
they were zoned as Heavy Commercial at their current location; Morgan answered yes.  
 
Motion by Slocum – Second by Pierce 
I move that we approve the zone change from “D” Light Commercial to “E” Heavy 
Commercial on Lots 6 & 7, Block B, South Field Addition. 
Pierce yea, Crum yea, Bradshaw yea, Kanaga yea, Ewert yea, Slocum yea, and Conrady 
yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
Planning/Community Relations Coordinator Jeana Morgan asked Council to also approve 
the ordinance connected to the zone change.  
 
Motion by Kanaga – Second by Ewert  



Regular Council Meeting 
September 27, 2010 
Page 4 
 
Mr. Mayor, I move that we approve AN ORDINANCE CHANGING THE ZONING 
CLASSIFICATION FROM “D” TO “E” ON CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED 
WITHIN THE CORPORATE CITY LIMITS OF THE CITY OF HAYSVILLE, 
KANSAS. 
Pierce yea, Crum yea, Bradshaw yea, Kanaga yea, Ewert yea, Slocum yea, and Conrady 
yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
Mayor Ken Hampton presented Discussion of Nuisance Abatement Policy. Mayor 
Hampton stated they needed to discuss the Nuisance Abatement Policy to determine a 
better way to take care of issues in a timely manner. Mayor Hampton asked City Attorney 
Alison McKenney-Brown to review and explain the current Nuisance Abatement Policy 
to Council. 
 
City Attorney Alison McKenney-Brown stated Mayor Ken Hampton had recently asked 
her to review the Haysville City Code to determine if there was a method in place for 
quickly addressing potential safety issues within the City. Brown stated she discovered a 
policy the City does have in place under the current Nuisance Abatement Code, under 
subsection “i”. Brown explained subsection “i” allows any act or failure to act that causes 
or permits a condition to exist which injures or endangers the public health, safety or 
welfare to be treated as a nuisance. Brown advised the City’s current nuisance policy 
allows the Code Enforcement Officer, under the direct supervision of his supervisors, to 
take two courses of action. The first course of action would be to serve notice upon the 
property owner or resident that a nuisance exists on the property. Brown further 
explained if the property is not under compliance after five days from when the notice 
was received then the City could go onto the property and correct the nuisance and 
charge the cost back to the property owner. Brown advised that under another subsection, 
the City reserves the right to go onto a property and secure an issue they deem unsafe. 
Brown advised the second course of action the Code Enforcement Officer could take 
would be to file an action in Municipal Court. Brown explained by filing an action it 
allows the court to handle the situation, which would take longer than five days. Brown 
advised the second action would be for issues that need special attention.  
 
Councilperson Keith Pierce asked if there were currently a standing in house policy for 
when staff is notified about something that was perceived as a public safety issue. Pierce 
asked if there was a specific response time for a safety issue to be handled after it has 
been reported either by a Council Action Request or a phone call. Mayor Ken Hampton 
stated it was his responsibility to make sure every issue was taken care of in a proper 
time. Mayor Hampton advised if an issue was not taken care of in a proper time then it 
was because he was not making sure the department heads were following policies 
currently established. Mayor Hampton stated this was a matter of reviewing their current 
policies and making sure they were abiding by them in the future. Mayor Hampton said 
Pierce’s request to remove four pieces of foundation with rebar sticking out could have 
been handled in a better time frame. Mayor Hampton stated that although it was not 
handled in a proper time frame they do not need another nuisance abatement policy in 



Regular Council Meeting 
September 27, 2010 
Page 5 
 
place for such situations. Mayor Hampton felt it was more a matter of being more aware 
of issues rather than establishing a new policy.  
 
Councilperson Sandy Bradshaw asked if they were discussing severe safety issues and 
not just something Council would like completed. Mayor Ken Hampton advised that was 
correct. Councilperson Keith Pierce cited safety issues he felt were not properly handled. 
Pierce felt a safety hazard should be immediately addressed after it was reported because 
if we did not address it soon enough something could happen and the City could be 
charged as negligent. Bradshaw asked if Pierce was asking for a detailed policy to 
address certain safety hazards. Pierce stated he did not want a specific policy but a 
specific time and he did not want to hear it would be taken care of in an appropriate time 
frame. Bradshaw felt the reason why the City has an appropriate time frame based policy 
is so they do not have to get specific about when something should be done. Bradshaw 
felt the time frame should be decided specifically on the severity of the issue. Pierce 
stated when there was an important safety issue he always called instead of sending a 
Council Action Request because those could not be handled immediately. Bradshaw felt 
the City was doing a pretty good job on handling issues, especially since Pierce only 
came up with four examples spanning several years. Bradshaw felt that maybe on the 
most recent thing Pierce submitted he did not get as fast of action as he wanted but he did 
state it was handled in a good time frame. Pierce felt it said a lot about Haysville that they 
did not find safety issues every day of the week but when they did find something then 
they need to quickly take care of it.   
 
Councilperson Steve Crum asked who decided what was a safety issue and which 
department should Council call if they were to find an issue. Crum stated there was a 
storm drain cover on Baughman that comes off slightly. Crum advised he had seen the 
issue twice and reported it to Pubic Works and it was taken care of that day. Crum asked 
as a Councilmember who should they contact for safety issues and who decides it is an 
actual safety issue that needs to be addressed. Mayor Ken Hampton advised they should 
contact Public Works. Director of Governmental Services Carol Neugent explained it was 
specified under subsection “i” who to contact. City Attorney Alison McKenney-Brown 
stated that under the current code, their first call should be to the Code Enforcement 
Officer. Brown suggested they also document their concern some way like through a 
Council Action Request. Brown stated the code was set up under subsection “i” to fall to 
the Code Enforcement Officer to determine if an issue was an immediate safety risk. 
Brown explained the Code Enforcement Officer acts underneath his direct supervisors, 
which ranges all the way up to the Mayor. Brown advised there was an old section of the 
code the Mayor had asked her to update that conflicts with the update subsection “i”. The 
old section stated Council may determine something a nuisance and abate it. Crum asked 
who takes care of a safety issue after hours after dispatch is notified. Chief of Police 
Mike McElroy stated the Police Department supervisor in charge would look at the area 
and determine what action should be taken and if anyone else should be notified. Crum 
felt the City had used this ordinance well in regards to safety issues. Crum stated the most 
important thing was that Council knew who to contact for safety issues.  
 



Regular Council Meeting 
September 27, 2010 
Page 6 
 
Mayor Ken Hampton stated things could always be improved upon as well.  
 
There was no Old Business.  
 
Mayor Ken Hampton asked for Department Reports.  
 
City Clerk Beverly Rodgers had nothing to report.  
 
Director of Governmental Services Carol Neugent had nothing to report.  
 
Chief of Police Mike McElroy had nothing to report.     
 
Director of Public Works Randy Dorner stated they were preparing the bids to go out for 
the sidewalks for the North Main Crosswalk. Dorner stated they were looking into 
replacing various other sidewalk locations around the City that had been brought to their 
attention during Council. Dorner stated he and the City Inspector had reviewed the areas 
around town that needed replacement. Dorner advised the total square footage for the 
worst areas around town added up to about 3,786 square feet. Dorner advised the 
replacement for the square footage adds up to about $18,000.  Dorner advised there was 
no allocation in Capital Improvements for the sidewalks and he was presenting it to 
Council to determine if they wanted to continue on with the process. Dorner stated the 
price could be trimmed down slightly by only improving the very worst sidewalks.  
 
Councilperson Keith Pierce stated he was most concerned about the sidewalks that have 
heaved, and asked if it was possible to just fill the cracked sidewalks. Director of Public 
Works Randy Dorner stated some of the sidewalks could be filled with epoxy which 
could buy the sidewalks a few more years. Dorner listed various places that could not be 
filled with epoxy.  
 
Mayor Ken Hampton asked how many places could be filled with epoxy that was in the 
total estimate. Director of Public Works Randy Dorner stated about 50 percent of the 
various areas could be filled with epoxy. Mayor Hampton asked if the City could epoxy 
the sidewalks. Dorner stated he would have to look into the issue. Mayor Hampton asked 
about how much money it would be if some sidewalks were filled with epoxy. Dorner 
stated it could be about $10,000. 
 
Councilperson Sandy Bradshaw asked if the City would still contract the work out. 
Director of Public Works Randy Dorner stated the worst and most separated sidewalks 
would be contracted out, depending on sealing cost per linear foot. Dorner stated this 
money had never been earmarked. Bradshaw asked if the City would still contract out the 
work either way it was done; Dorner answered yes. Dorner further explained the money 
had been earmarked for the crosswalk. Bradshaw asked if the money for the crosswalk 
would be a bid as well; Dorner answered yes. Dorner explained he combined the 
problematic sidewalks with the crosswalk to hopefully get a better price per foot.  
 



Regular Council Meeting 
September 27, 2010 
Page 7 
 
Mayor Ken Hampton advised they were looking for Council to give a sort of direction as 
to whether they wanted the sidewalks fixed or not.  
 
Councilperson Keith Pierce stated the sidewalk that had heaved just east of Marlen and 
various sunken sidewalks around town needed to be addressed. 
 
Mayor Ken Hampton asked Director of Governmental Services Carol Neugent if Council 
needed to make a motion on the item. Neugent explained they were only seeking 
direction from Council on how to proceed with the issue. Mayor Hampton asked Director 
of Public Works to proceed with the issue.  
 
Recreation Director Georgie Carter announced on October 1 they would begin youth 
basketball signups.  
 
Under Appointments Mayor Ken Hampton presented for approval Pat Ferguson – 944 
Alexander Drive, Re: Appointment to the Historic Committee. 
 
Motion by Bradshaw – Second Crum 
Mr. Mayor, I make a motion that Council allow you to appoint Pat Ferguson, 944 
Alexander Drive, to the Historic Committee.  
Pierce yea, Crum yea, Bradshaw yea, Kanaga yea, Ewert yea, Slocum yea, and Conrady 
yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
There were no Off Agenda Citizens to be Heard.  
 
There was no Executive Session scheduled.  
 
Mayor Ken Hampton presented Bills to be Paid for the Last Half of September. 
 
Motion by Ewert – Second by Kanaga  
I make a motion, if there’s no questions to be heard, to pay the last half of September 
bills.  
Pierce yea, Crum yea, Bradshaw yea, Kanaga yea, Ewert yea, Slocum yea, and Conrady 
yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
There was nothing on the Consent Agenda.  
 
Under Council Items Mayor Ken Hampton asked for comments or new Council concerns.  
 
Councilperson Keith Pierce apologized to Council, staff, Mayor, and specifically 
Councilperson Sandy Bradshaw for his outburst earlier in the meeting.  
 



Regular Council Meeting 
September 27, 2010 
Page 8 
 
Councilperson Steve Crum asked if there would be another report coming to Council or 
possibly a workshop regarding the E-911 consolidation. Mayor Ken Hampton stated there 
would be an in house workshop but he had not considered any specific option to bring it 
to Council. Director of Governmental Services Carol Neugent stated they had not thought 
that far out but knew there would be several steps that would have to be taken before 
seriously considering the switch. Neugent explained there were several issues they were 
addressing and was planning on bringing the item back to Council when they felt 
comfortable. Mayor Hampton stated they were addressing several issues and when those 
issues were resolved they would bring the item back to Council. Mayor Hampton 
encouraged Council to ask any questions throughout the process. Crum asked if it would 
be an open meeting violation for Neugent to send out an email asking Council to submit 
any questions they may have. City Attorney Alison McKenney-Brown stated it would not 
be a violation because it was only one member of Council communicating with Neugent 
and the entire governing body would not be involved. Crum stated it would be easier to 
create an agenda item to keep updated. Crum requested staff and Mayor ask if Council 
had any questions before the agenda item came up so they could be better prepared. Crum 
asked who was responsible for the weed maintenance by the railroad overpass. Mayor 
Hampton stated the railroad company does not comply well and it was an issue that had 
been ongoing for years. Crum asked if the City were to abate the area if we could bill the 
railroad company. Chief of Police Mike McElroy stated it would be difficult to find 
someone to bill. Crum asked if anything could be done improve the area. Mayor 
Hampton stated they did recently discuss the issue. Crum stated the front of the City 
Building and new Police Department looked great, but he was concerned that children 
had to walk in the street when sidewalks was being put in. Crum asked if the City looked 
at volumes of traffic at different times when working on or near a sidewalk. Crum stated 
about four citizens contacted him who was concerned that middle school children had to 
walk in the street. Director of Public Works Randy Dorner stated they had provided 
various different alternatives for the children but it was difficult getting them to follow 
direction. Crum felt some of the lane should have been blocked off and asked Dorner to 
consider this in the future. Dorner stated they would.  
 
Councilperson Mike Kanaga asked staff to check with the Mini Stop to adjust their 
sprinklers because his car got hit every morning a little after 6 a.m.  
 
Councilperson Pat Ewert stated she noticed there were orange cones blocking one lane of 
traffic when cement was being poured, and children were walking within the cones.  
 
Councilperson Michael Conrady thanked staff for their efforts on completing the new 
Police Department building and the landscaping.   
 
Mayor Ken Hampton presented for approval Adjournment.  
 
Motion by Pierce – Second by Ewert 
Mr. Mayor and Council, I move that we adjourn tonight’s meeting.  



Regular Council Meeting 
September 27, 2010 
Page 9 
 
Pierce yea, Crum yea, Bradshaw yea, Kanaga yea, Ewert yea, Slocum yea, and Conrady 
yea.  
Motion declared carried. 
 
Meeting Adjourned at 8:18 p.m.  
 
 

_________________________________  
Beverly Rodgers, City Clerk 


